
Procurement Board 
Dear Member,

You are invited to attend the meeting of the Procurement Board to be held as follows 
for the transaction of the business indicated.
Miranda Carruthers-Watt 
Proper Officer

DATE: Wednesday, 11 September 2019

TIME: 10.00 am

VENUE: The Boardroom, Salford Civic Centre, Chorley Road, Swinton

In accordance with ‘The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 
2014,’ the press and public have the right to film, video, photograph or record 
this meeting. 

AGENDA

1  Apologies for absence 

2  Declarations of interest 

3  To approve, as a correct record, the minutes of the meeting held 
on 28 August 2019 

(Pages 1 - 2)

4  Matters arising 

5  Decision items - Part 1 (open to the public) 

5a Request for Approval to Go Out to Competition - Arboricultural 
Services 

(Pages 3 - 8)

5b Request for Approval - Appointment of two Project and Programme 
Managers through the CAPPS or STAR Consultancy Framework to 
Take a Lead on Grant Funded Infrastructure Projects 

(Pages 9 - 14)

6  Any other business - Part 1 (open to the public) 

7  Exclusion of the public 

8  Decision items - Part 2 (closed to the public) 

9  Date and time of next meeting 

10:00am on Wednesday 25 September 2019 in the Boardroom, 
Salford City Council, Chorley Road, Swinton, M27 5DA.

Public Document Pack



Contact Officer: Tel No: 0161 793 3316
Carol Eddleston, Senior Democratic Services 
Advisor

E-Mail: carol.eddleston@salford.gov.uk



Page | 1 

PROCUREMENT BOARD

28 August 2019

Meeting commenced: 10:05 a.m.
Meeting ended: 10:29 a.m.

PRESENT: Councillor Hinds (in the chair) and Councillor Merry

IN ATTENDANCE: Jane Case Senior Programme Manager
Christopher Conway Category Manager
Christine Flisk Procurement Manager
Joanne Hardman Chief Finance Officer
Sharon Hubber  Assistant Director – Specialist Services
Jacquie Russell Assistant Director - Strategy and Change
Jonathan Till Business Support – Urban Vision 
Carol Eddleston Senior Democratic Services Advisor

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of the City Mayor Paul Dennett and 
Councillor Boshell.

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest.

3. MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

The minutes of the meeting held on 7 August were approved as a correct record.

4. MATTERS ARISING

There were no matters arising.

5. REQUEST FOR APPROVAL – EXCEPTION TO CONTRACTUAL STANDING ORDERS – 
CONTRACT AWARD – VITAL AND VIABLE PLACES

Consideration was give to a report of the Strategic Director for Service Reform seeking an 
exception to Contractual Standing Orders to allow a contract to be awarded for the Vital and 
Viable Neighbourhoods project.

It was confirmed that this work would be separate and distinct to the strategic master 
planning being considered in Swinton but that the project groups for the Vital and Viable 
Neighbourhoods would work very closely with the Swinton Transformation Project Board and 
Steering Group.

RESOLVED, THAT:

(1) an exception to Contractual Standing Orders be approved in accordance with 
Paragraph 3.1 for the following reason: specialist services which are available only 
from one supplier, and

(2) a 24 months’ contract,  with a value of £50,000, be awarded to the Institute of Place 
Management (Manchester Metropolitan University) for the provision of ‘Vital and 
Viable Places’.

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



Page | 2 

6. REQUEST FOR APPROVAL – EXCEPTION TO CONTRACTUAL STANDING ORDERS – 
CONTRACT AWARD – CO-DESIGN AND REFURBISHMENT OF THE GRANGE 
CHILDREN’S HOME

Consideration was given to a report of the Strategic Director People seeking an exception to 
Contractual Standing Orders to allow a contract to be awarded for the co-design and 
refurbishment of the Grange Children’s Home.

The children and their families, and the staff, were all really excited by the innovative nature 
of the co-design of the physical space which was mindful of the needs of those who had 
experienced trauma and adversity.

RESOLVED, THAT:

(1) an exception to Contractual Standing Orders be approved in accordance with 
Paragraph 3.1 for the following reason: the need for the goods, services or works is 
so urgent that the time needed to comply with the rules would be prejudicial to the 
council’s interests, and

(2) a contract with a value of £141,404.55 be awarded to Quay Interiors Ltd for the Co-
design and Refurbishment of the Grange Children’s Home.

7. REQUEST FOR APPROVAL – CONTRACT AWARD – PROVISION OF SIX SHEET 
DIGITAL ADVERTISING UNITS WITHIN THE CITY OF SALFORD

Consideration was given to a report of the Strategic Director Place seeking approval to 
award the contract for the provision of six sheet digital advertising units within the City of 
Salford, to be located on Council owned land.

The board discussed whether advertising boards larger than used within the city of Salford 
might be distracting to drivers but research had shown that distractions within a vehicle were 
in fact greater than those outside.

It was confirmed that all of the advertisements placed were subject to Advertising Standards 
Authority advertising codes as well as to the Council’s own policy. 

RESOLVED, THAT: a seven year contract be awarded to Clear Channel UK Ltd for the 
provision of six sheet digital advertising units within the City of Salford, to be located on 
Council owned land.

8. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC

RESOLVED: THAT, under Section 100a(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public be 
excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the grounds that they 
included the likely disclosure of exempt information as specified in the relevant paragraphs 
of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Act.

9. REQUEST FOR APPROVAL – CONTRACT AWARD – PROVISION OF SIX SHEET 
DIGITAL ADVERTISING UNITS WITHIN THE CITY OF SALFORD

Consideration was given to a report of the Strategic Director Place seeking approval to 
award the contract for the provision of six sheet digital advertising units within the City of 
Salford, to be located on Council owned land. Minute 7 above presents the decision taken 
by the board.

Page 2



 

Part 1 – Open to the public ITEM NO.

REPORT OF

The Strategic Director Place 

TO  

Procurement Board

ON

Wednesday 11th September 2019

TITLE: Approval to go out to competition for Arboricultural Services

RECOMMENDATION: 

That Procurement Board:

Grant authority for the provision of Arboricultural Services to be procured in 
accordance with the Council’s Contractual Standing Orders through an open 
tender 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:  

The purpose of this report is to request approval to go out to competition for the 
procurement of the Arboricultural Service.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:

None

KEY DECISION: No

Page 3

Agenda Item 5a



 

DETAILS: 

1. Background,

 The current Arboricultural Service contract has been in place since April 2016 
and is scheduled to expire on 31st March 2020. 

 The contract relates to the provision of arboricultural works for Salford City 
Council.

2. The Procurement Process

2.1 The opportunity will be advertised in the European Journal and the northwest 
portal (the chest) as an open procedure.

2.2 The weighting for this project will be determined on price, quality and social 
value. Due to the nature of the service and to ensure the council get maximum 
value for money each tender submitted has to pass the standard questionnaire 
containing sections on Insurance, Financial capability, Health and Safety, 
Equality and Diversity, Environmental management and as to whether the 
companies have the necessary experience.

2.3 The evaluation will be undertaken by officers from the Place Directorate, which 
includes the arboricultural client officer and a member from the procurement 
team.

2.4 The evaluation within the pricing element will be based on a basket of goods for 
the most popular work carried out over the last twelve months. This will be based 
on new cost versus current costs. 

2.5 The duration of the contract will be for a period from 1st April 2020 – 31st March 
2022 with an option to extend for 2 extensions of twelve months to 31st March 
2024.

2.6 Dependent on supplier performance, the KPI’s that are set with the company and 
the contract monitoring each extension will be approved by procurement board 
or Strategic Director (dependent on value) up to 31st March 2024.

3.  Social Value 

3.1 Salford will achieve Social Value through the implementation of the following 
social initiatives on this contract and this will be evaluated as part of the 
procurement process.

3.1.1 Ethical and Sustainable Purchasing: On award of the contract, the 
Mobilisation Manager will review all products and services needed to 
deliver this contract. The purchasing policy commits them to be proactive 
in terms of environmental, social and environmental issues.  In Salford, 
this will include the purchasing of certified goods (such as FSC/PEFC 
approved products; i.e. tree stakes), local procurement (i.e. local 

Page 4



 

servicing, hire of machinery; APL Aerial Platforms Ltd based in Salford), a 
fair payment policy and the vetting of suppliers to ensure they operate in 
accordance with the same code of ethics and conduct as our operatives.

  
3.1.2  Increase Recycling and Energy Reduction:  The company will recycle 

100% of all wood-waste generated as a result of the operations in Salford.  
The equipment will be energy efficient and vehicles will be low emission.  
The company will use biodegradable chainsaw oil and will use new, 
lightweight chippers, reducing CO2 and energy use. 

3.1.3 Accessibility: The successful contractor will work with the Council to 
ensure all sections of the community can access their services.  They will 
provide information about their services in different languages or formats 
as required and will ensure that the contractor adopts SCC equality and 
diversity policies.

3.1.4  Promoting local labour / buying locally: The successful contractor will 
adopt a policy to encourage a diverse range of suppliers to tender to 
provide services, materials or expertise.  Our aim is to give equal 
opportunities to local Salford suppliers; particularly those owned by under-
represented groups.  In Salford, improved supplier diversity will be 
achieved; for example, we will expect recruitment to be undertaken in 
partnership with local bodies focussing on young people and provide 
opportunities for apprenticeships where possible. Equipment hire should 
be sourced from local companies where possible. They will report our 
expenditure paid to Salford based suppliers annually. 

3.1.5  Creating Better Place for Business: To foster better links between local 
businesses, and encourage local employment, their teams will make their 
best effort to integrate local companies in this contract. When conditions 
permit, they will include local companies in their tendering procedures. We 
would expect the successful contractor to make opportunities available for 
local companies to access training and business development.  They will 
actively support the training needs of local SME’s for example, regarding 
health and safety, development of method statements and risk 
assessments.  This is very helpful to small organisations with limited 
resources, as it provides them with an opportunity to tender for and work 
on new business with the successful contractor and Salford City Council, 
despite the administrative challenges.

3.1.6 City Mayor’s Employment Charter: It will be a requirement of the 
successful contractor to sign up to the Mayor’s Employment Charter. They 
would include a statement within their supply chain approval audit, 
encouraging their Salford supply chain to also sign up to the Charter.

3.1.7  Develop / Monitor / Report
In order to demonstrate their commitment and report on the social value 
they provide, it will be a requirement to apply for the full Mayor’s Charter 
Mark and will provide evidence against all eight pledges in the three 
categories of:

Page 5



 

 Putting Salford first;
 Buying in Salford;
 Setting the Standard.

It will be a requirement to agree and report on a set of Social KPI’s with the 
Council annually.  As part of this review, targets for the following year will 
be jointly set.

4.0  Option to deliver the arboricultural service in house

4.1 The arboricultural contract is a highly specialised service requiring a team of 
skilled operators, technical equipment and personal protective equipment. There 
is a small arboricultural team of 2 within grounds maintenance who undertake 
emergency and minor tree works. However due to the size of the contract it does 
not offer value for money on a cost efficiency basis to employ our own in house 
team to deal with larger and more complex work. The risk and reputation for the 
city council is protected by working with an external partner. 

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: 

List the strategies, plan or programme to which the project/scheme/service or 
purchase of goods specifically relates:

Green space Strategy

Salford City Council Tree Management Policy

Greater Manchester Tree and Woodland Strategy (Draft)

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: 

N/A

ASSESSMENT OF RISK:  

Risk relates to the implications if the scheme does not go out to tender:

High. There is significant H&S and reputational risks if no contractor is appointed as 
the city council will be unable to carry out its duty to ensure that the tree asset is 
managed in a safe and sustainable manner. This would pose a significant risk to 
members of the public, buildings and business due to potential damage from falling 
trees on highways and from parks and greenspaces. 

Page 6



 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: 

When commissioning contracts for the procurement of goods, services or the 
execution of works, the Council must comply with the EU public procurement 
regulations and rules and its own Contractual Standing Orders (CSO’s), failing which 
a contract may be subject to legal challenge from an aggrieved provider.  Due to the 
value of this contract it will need to be advertised and let in accordance with the EU 
public procurement regulations and rules. The contract terms to be used in the 
procurement exercise will be the Council's standard terms which are robust and will 
give the Council sufficient rights, protections and remedies.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: Paul Guest – Finance Officer 925 1136 

There is a Revenue budget of £50,000 within Place Directorate to cover 
arboricultural works on Salford City Council owned land via the Green Budget 
agreement. Any additional works which fall outside of this agreement will be funded 
via the relevant Directorate. There will also be arboricultural works which fall within 
the remit of the Capital Programme and these works will be funded via the 
appropriate Capital budgets.

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: Deborah Derbyshire x 6244

The opportunity will be advertised in the European Journal and through the 
Northwest Portal as an open procedure which conforms to the Procurement Contract 
Regulations and the City Councils Contractual Standing Orders.

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: 

N/A

CONTACT OFFICER: Annie Surtees TEL. NO.1153

WARD(S) TO WHICH REPORT RELATE(S): 

ALL

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



1

Part 1 – Open to the Public ITEM NO.

REPORT OF STRATEGIC DIRECTOR FOR PLACE 

TO THE PROCUREMENT BOARD

On the 11th September 2019

TITLE:  APPOINTMENT OF 2 PROJECT AND PROGRAMME MANAGERS 
THROUGH THE CAPPS OR STAR CONSULTANCY FRAMEWORK TO 
TAKE A CLIENT LEAD ON GRANT FUNDED INFRASTRUCTURE 
PROJECTS 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

That the Procurement Board authorise the following: 

1. The appointment of two appropriately skilled consultant project and 
programme manager through either the CAPPS Construction and Professional 
Services Framework or STAR Procurement Framework to provide support in 
connection with the City Council’s growing workload of grant funded 
infrastructure projects.  This will be for a 12 month period.

2. Delegated Authority be given to the Strategic Director for Place to authorise an 
extension, subject to future work load, availability of funding and reaching 
agreement with the Council’s HR team.

Detail required
Title/Description of Contracted 

Service/Supply/Project
Appointment of two project and programme 

managers  
Name of  Engineering Consultant To be arranged through the CAPPS 

Construction and Professional Services 
Framework or STAR Procurement Framework

Name of Successful Contractor 
Supplier Registration Number

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)
Type of organisation

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)
Other

Status of Organisation
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

SME

Contract Value
Other Costs

£
£

£170,000 (Estimated)

Contract Duration 12 months
Contract Start Date 07/10/2019
Contract End Date 06/10/2020

Contact Officer (Name & number)
Lead Service Group

Page 9

Agenda Item 5b



2

How the contract was procured?
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

To be procured through the CAPPS 
Construction and Professional Services 

Framework or STAR Procurement Framework
Framework Details (where 

applicable)
(Procurement Body, Framework Reference 

& Title, Start/End Dates, Hyperlink, etc.)

CAPPS Construction and Professional 
Services Framework or STAR Procurement 

Framework

Funding Source Regeneration Capital Programme

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:

Salford City Council’s Regeneration Team has successfully made submissions for 
external funding for a range of infrastructure projects through both Growth Deal and 
the Greater Manchester Mayor’s Cycling and Walking Challenge Fund (MCF).

The City Council’s Regeneration Team had already received authorisation from 
Procurement Board on the 23rd January & 13th March 2019 to appoint 3 project and 
programme managers, to lead on the development and delivery of these projects.

Further to this, following GMCA Board on the 30th June 2019, the City Council was 
advised that it had also successfully secured additional MCF project development 
funding for the £28 million City Centre Salford ‘Active Centres, Corridors & 
Neighbourhoods Project’ and £2 million RHS links project.

In addition, further funding bids have been submitted for a significant pipeline of new 
projects.

Salford City Council together with the other districts across Greater Manchester are 
now coming under increasing pressure from the GMCA to ensure that adequate 
resources are in place to develop and deliver the MCF projects where funding has 
been awarded.

The Regeneration Team in the City Council has inadequate resource to meet this 
demand.

Support is therefore required as a priority.  An approach has been made to Urban 
Vision regarding a suitably skilled replacement. However, they have confirmed that 
they are unable to fulfil this request.

This report therefore seeks authority from Procurement Board to appoint 2 
appropriately skilled consultant project and programme managers through either the 
CAPPS Construction and Professional Services Framework or STAR Procurement 
Framework.

It is proposed that this be for a 12 month period, with an option to extend based on 
assessment of future work load and available funding for the posts.  

Although quotations will be obtained through one of the frameworks based on both 
quality and price, it is estimated that the cost is likely to be in the region of £170,000.

The proposal to appoint programme managers who will be working on projects which 
are funded from the Growth deal grant and the Majors challenge fund, allow all costs 

Page 10



3

to be re-claimed on a staged basis from the grant funding body at the Greater 
Manchester Combined Authority (GMCA).  There will be no impact on the City 
council resources.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:  N/A

KEY DECISION:    No

1. Detail 

1.1 The City Council had successfully made funding applications to both Growth 
Deal and the Greater Manchester Mayor’s Cycling and Walking Challenge 
Fund for projects to the value of circa £40 million.  These include: -

- Trafford Road
- SBNI inc. Swinton
- Chapel Street East Phase 1
- Swinton Greenway
- Liverpool Street Phase 1
- Ordsall Neighbourhood

1.2 In addition, the City Council’s Regeneration Team has also submitted a further 
funding bid to MCF for the ‘Salford Innovation Triangle Project’ valued at circa 
£47 million. 

1.3 There was insufficient resource available within the existing team to deal with 
the work required to manage the programme/project workload, which includes 
the following: - 

- Performing a strategic client project management function including 
overseeing project/programme management development, studies and 
delivery of physical schemes by Salford City Council’s delivery 
partner/external consultants.

- Leading the development and preparation of bids for grant funding linked to 
strategies and write and make business case submissions in order to 
secure funding for a range of infrastructure projects.

- Developing, commissioning, co-ordinating and managing a range of 
infrastructure and regeneration related projects, strategies and plans 
across all transport modes.

- Managing projects in accordance with the City Council’s adopted project 
management procedures and other specific procedures and processes 
required by grant funding bodies.

- Managing and monitoring budgets and financial risks associated with 
programmes and projects to ensure effective management and financial 
propriety.

Page 11



4

1.4 To resolve the resourcing issue identified above, Procurement Board 
authorised the appointment of 3 project and programme managers on the 23rd 
January and 13th March 2019.  This additional support was successfully 
secured for a 12 month period through the STAR Procurement Framework.  

1.5 Further to this, following GMCA Board on the 30th June 2019, the City Council 
was advised that it had also successfully secured additional MCF project 
development funding for the £28 million City Centre Salford ‘Active Centres, 
Corridors & Neighbourhoods Project’ and £2 million RHS links project.

1.6 In addition, the City Council’s Regeneration Team has also submitted a further 
funding bid to MCF for the ‘Salford Innovation Triangle Project’ valued at circa 
£47 million.

1.7 Salford City Council together with the other districts across Greater 
Manchester are now coming under increasing pressure from the GMCA to 
ensure that adequate resources are in place to develop and deliver the MCF 
projects where funding has been awarded.

1.8 Additional support is therefore required as a priority to help develop and 
deliver this growing workload of projects.  An approach has been made to 
Urban Vision regarding suitably skilled support. However, they have confirmed 
that they are unable to fulfil this request.

1.9 This report therefore seeks authority from Procurement Board to appoint 2 
appropriately skilled consultant project and programme managers through 
either the CAPPS Construction and Professional Services Framework or 
STAR Procurement Framework.

1.10 It is intended that this be for a period of 12 months with an option to determine 
whether an extension or alternative arrangement is required.

2. Estimated Cost

2.1 Competitive quotations for the supply of the service will be obtained from 
appropriate infrastructure consultants on the CAPPS or STAR frameworks.  It 
is anticipated that the cost will be in the region of £170,000 for the project 
managers.

3. Funding 

3.1 The proposal to appoint programme managers who will be working on projects 
which are funded from the Growth Deal grant and the Mayors challenge fund, 
allow all costs to be re-claimed on a staged basis from the grant funding body 
at the Greater Manchester Combined Authority (GMCA).  There will be no 
impact on the City council resources.

3.2 Project costs are normally claimed from the GMCA quarterly in arrears through 
an established process.

Page 12



5

4. Social Value

4.1 Through the CAPPS or STAR frameworks, the City Council will seek to 
maximise labour sourced from the local area.

5. Conclusion

5.1 The City Council has achieved a great deal of success in securing project 
funding through both Growth Deal and the Greater Manchester Mayors 
Cycling and Walking Challenge Fund.

 
5.2 Building on this success, the City Council has a further pipeline of 

infrastructure projects that has been submitted for funding. 

5.3 With insufficient resource in place, the significant risk is that the Council will 
not  deliver the infrastructure projects against which it has already secured 
funding.  Equally, the council’s ability to attract further grant funding for 
infrastructure projects is limited.

5.4 The most expedient way to resolve the resourcing issue is to appoint 2 
consultant infrastructure project and programme managers through a 
consultancy framework.

5.5 This has been explored and the two most appropriate frameworks are CAPPS 
Construction and Professional Services and STAR Procurement.

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: 

Great 8
- 4. Economic Development
- 6. Transport

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: 

All of the projects to be taken forward will be designed to ensure that the schemes 
comply with the Disability Discrimination Act and highway safety standards. 

ASSESSMENT OF RISK: Medium

 The significant risk is that without additional resource, the Council does not 
have the ability to deliver the infrastructure projects against which it has 
already secured funding.  

 Equally, the council’s ability to attract further grant funding for infrastructure 
projects is limited without additional resource in place.

Page 13



6

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: Tony Hatton, Principal Solicitor, tel. 219 6323

When commissioning contracts for the procurement of goods, services or the execution 
of works, the Council must comply with the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 (PCR) 
and its own Contractual Standing Orders (CSO’s), failing which a contract may be 
subject to legal challenge from an aggrieved provider. CSO’s apply to every contract, 
including temporary ones, for the procurement of supplies, services and the execution of 
works undertaken by or on behalf of the Council, subject to certain exceptions listed in 
the Orders. CSO’s stipulate that where a suitable framework agreement exists, this must 
be used unless there is an auditable reason not to.

The CAPPS and STaR Frameworks are fully OJEU compliant and have been procured 
for named authorities, including Salford City Council and other public sector 
organisations to use. Each Framework is an overarching agreement through which those 
named organisations can select a service from a range of providers by undertaking an 
exercise to call off the services (eg. mini competition) and enter into an individual 
contract/agreement with that provider, according to the terms of the Framework 
Agreement. A contract will then be formed between the Council and the chosen 
provider/s. The Council will need to have followed the procedure set out in the 
Framework Agreements to ensure the procurement process is compliant.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: Natalie Birchall ext 2316

The proposal to appoint programme managers who will be working on projects which are 
funded from the Growth deal grant and the Majors challenge fund, allow all costs to be 
re-claimed on a staged basis from the grant funding body at the Greater Manchester 
Combined Authority (GMCA).  There will be no impact on the City council resources.

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by:  Christine Flisk, Category Manager ext 
6241

Procuring this requirement through the CAPPS Construction and Professional Services 
Framework or STAR Procurement Frameworks complies with both EU legislation and 
Salford City Council’s Contractual Standing Orders.

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: N/A

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES: N/A

CONTACT OFFICER:  
Perry Twigg ext 6053

Ben Dolan
Strategic Director
Place

Page 14


	Agenda
	3 To approve, as a correct record, the minutes of the meeting held on 28 August 2019
	5a Request for Approval to Go Out to Competition - Arboricultural Services
	5b Request for Approval - Appointment of two Project and Programme Managers through the CAPPS or STAR Consultancy Framework to Take a Lead on Grant Funded Infrastructure Projects

